Public Document Pack

AGENDA
Committee

- GREATER THETFORD
DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP
COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP

Date & Time

- WEDNESDAY, 16TH JANUARY,
2019 AT 7.00 PM

Venue

- GUILDHALL COUNCIL CHAMBER,
MARKET PLACE, THETFORD

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
Wednesday, 16th January, 2019
Page(s)
herewith

1.

AGENDA

3

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 21 NOVEMBER 2018

4-5

3.

CHAIRMANS NOTES

6-7

4.

SUE / TEP UPDATE

8-9

Agenda Item 1

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting
Wednesday 16th January 2019, 7–9pm,
Guildhall Council Chamber, Market Place, Thetford

Agenda
1. Welcome & Introductions
Including the new Independent Community Members of the Sub-Group, who have been selected
following the recruitment process last year.
2. Approval of Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the previous Sub-Group meeting of 21st November 2018.
3. Announcements & Matters Arising
Announcements from the Chair; Matters arising from the minutes not covered in another item.
4. Election of new Sub-Group Chair and Vice-Chair
Procedure for filling vacant positions on the Sub-Group
5. Sustainable Urban Expansion, Thetford Enterprise Park, and Waterspace Updates
See separate paper for details.
6. Public Questions
Up to 15 minutes for questions and comments from members of the public.
7. Items to Note
Other items of public interest, which there will not necessarily be time to discuss at this meeting.
(a) The Norfolk Police & Crime Commissioner is consulting on whether or not to raise the
Police part of the Council Tax precept in order to prevent cuts to services, or adopt an
even greater increase to allow additional investment. Details at https://bit.ly/2FixxBG;
deadline for responses 30th January 2019.
(b) The Shadwell Estate Company is re-submitting a previously refused planning application
for around 100 new houses on land east of Arlington Way (reference 3PL/2017/0578/O).
View and comment online at https://bit.ly/2Rhemj8.
8. Any Other Business
9. Meeting Summary
Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate at the meeting. In addition to the time
for public questions, members of the public have the opportunity to contribute during the remainder of
the meeting at the invitation of the Chair. Further details and meeting papers are available online at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. Minutes and papers are also available at the Town
Council Offices in King’s House and at Leaping Hare on King Street.

3

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of The Greater Thetford Development Partnership
Community Sub Group
Held at Guildhall Council Chamber, Market Place, Thetford
on Wednesday 21st November 2018, 7pm to 9pm
Chair: Mr Robert Whittaker
Apologies: Brenda Canham.

Minutes: Clare Higson
There were 3 members of the public present.

1.Introductions
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained the purpose
of the Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board and the sub-groups.
The Chairman spoke of the great sadness on hearing of the death of Andy
Cruse. Andy had been on the sub group since it was formed in 2016, and had
also previously represented us on the Board’s Planning and Projects sub group.
Andy was a valuable member of the sub group. He took his responsibilities
seriously and came well-prepared to the meetings and we all recognised the
value of his contributions. He will be sorely missed and our thoughts are with
his family and friends at this time.

2.Approval of the Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 19th September 2018 were agreed.

3.Announcements and Matters Arising
The meeting noted that various additional updates on local matters were now
available in the papers for the upcoming GTDP Board meeting. These can be
viewed online at https://bit.ly/2BpnDfe .

4. Sustainable Urban Expansion, Thetford Enterprise Park,
Waterspace Updates.
Following public queries, Breckland Council will be asked why they appear to
be failing to enforce their own planning policies on bus provision for Kingsﬂeet
Phase 1. The meeting also wanted clariﬁcation on whether there will be

4

convenient smooth-surfaced pedestrian routes suitable for those using
mobility aids linking Phase 1a to nearby destinations in the town (e.g. the
Tesco Superstore, and the Admirals Estate shops).
It was reported that the Environment Agency now have a preferred option for
reinstating the ﬂow of the River Thet through the Coﬀee Mill sluice, and are in
discussion with Thetford Town Council the implementation. Details at
https://bit.ly/2MWtJX8 .
As a result of a last-minute request from Norfolk County Council, the meeting
considered a tentative proposal for a new cycle path along Croxton Road. The
current suggestion is to provide 600m of shared-use pedestrian and cycle path
by widening the western pavement to 2.7m between the Army Cadet Centre
and Thetford Academy. The meeting was broadly supportive of the proposal,
but thought it was vital that it formed part of a joined-up plan for cycling
provision along the whole length of Croxton Road. There were also some
concerns about how cyclists would join and leave the proposed section, and
whether a 2.7m width was enough to avoid conﬂicts between users.

5.Public Questions
The meeting heard how the standard response / lack of status update on
reported road repairs with Norfolk County Council meant that members of the
public had no way of knowing when action was going to be taken.

6. Any Other Business
Arrangements for future Sub-Group meetings were discussed. The Sub-Group
has been meeting on the third Wednesday of odd-numbered months, to ﬁt in
with the GTDP Board meetings in even-numbered months. It was agreed to
continue with the Sub Group’s current schedule, unless there are changes to
the Board meetings. It was agreed the next Community Sub-Group Meeting
would be on 16th January 2018, 7–9pm, at a venue to be conﬁrmed.

For more information, the agenda and papers for the meeting can be
found online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup.

5

Agenda Item 3

Item 3: Chairman’s Notes
Robert Whittaker
GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 16th January 2019

1

GTDP Board Meetings

Since the previous Sub-Group meeting on 21st November 2018, the GTDP Board has met once
on 27th November. Members were given a presentation on health-care, re-elected Sam ChapmanAllen as Chair of the Board, and received updates on various local issues. The papers and draft
minutes for this meeting can be found online at https://bit.ly/2BpnDfe. An administrative
error meant that the Community Sub-Group report was missed off the meeting agenda, and this
was not corrected despite me pointing it out before the meeting. However, I was able to raise
various issues before the end of the meeting.

2

Answers and Updates to Public Questions and Concerns

Various issues have been raised by the public at previous Sub-Group meetings, and we have
attempted to investigate and provide updates.
Railway Station Access Issues and Parking. Various issues with the station have been
raised at different Community Sub-Group meetings, including the poor accessibility of
the footbridge and the lack of car parking. The Board wrote to Greater Anglia back in
March, but have yet to make any significant progress with them.
There is a possibility of moving some of the allotments to the north of the station to
make way for extra parking. However, replacement land for the allotments would need to
be found first, as it is a legal requirement to maintain allotments to meet local demand.
Breckland council had been trying to find alternative land, but had not found anything
acceptable to the Town Council (who own and manage the existing allotment) yet.
At the November 2018 Board meeting, an update on options was provided (https://bit.
ly/2VDbRGs) and the Board agreed to continue working to expand car-parking provision
at the station.
Cost of Purchasing Train Tickets on the Train. At the November 2017 Sub-Group meeting, an issue was raised about passengers being charged more when buying tickets on the
train compared with buying them at the station. In almost all cases, this shouldn’t happen. The main exception is those travelling with East Midlands Trains, who do not give
railcard discounts on the train if ticketing facilities are available at the station.
The Board wrote to East Midlands Trains about this issue in April, and have got some
initial positive engagement from the company, but as yet there is nothing definite to report.
No further correspondence had been received at the November 2018 Board meeting, but
it was promised that things would be chased up. I asked Breckland for confirmation that
this had happened for this report, but at time of writing they had not responded.
Health-Care Provision Concern had been expressed at various Community Sub-Group meetings about the lack of planning for expanded health-care provision for the new SUE residents. Various key staff from local health-care bodies were present at the November 2018
Board meeting, and gave a presentation on future developments in the sector. They are
aware of the SUE and are planning for the required increase in health-care provision. Unfortunately there was not much detail in the presentation on precisely how services for
Thetford would be expanded to meet the new demand.
1

6

Bus Provision for Kingsfleet (SUE) A member of the public raised a query about Bus
provision for the new houses in the SUE at Sub-Group’s May 2018 meeting, and this
came up again as a correction to the draft minutes at the September 2018 meeting. As
result I looked into the planning policies and provisions currently being made. It appears
that Breckland’s own planning policy (TAAP TH26) requires bus services to operate from
the first day of occupation of the SUE, but Breckland has not enforced this policy on the
developer. There is also a question over whether the intended use of the Joe Blunt’s Lane
underpass for buses is consistent with another planning policy (TAAP TH11).
I asked Breckland’s planning department to confirm and explain these apparent discrepancies (on 10th October and 5th November 2018), but received no response. I raised the
issue at the GTDP Board Meeting on 27th November 2018, where Rob Walker (Breckland Executive Director of Place) promised to take up the matter. Despite requesting a
response for this report, I have heard nothing back at time of writing.
Pedestrian Access to and from Kingsfleet At the November 2018 Sub-Group meeting, a
member of the public raised the issue that there appeared to be no hard-surfaced footpaths
being provided to link the first phase of new houses in the Kingsfleet development to the
rest of the town. This will cause difficulties for those with mobility problems. I raised
the matter at the November 2018 Board meeting, and was told that officers were already
aware of the issue and were looking in to what could be done. I asked for an update from
Rob Walker for this report, but none was forthcoming.

3

Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Report

The Sub Group’s Cycling and Walking report got a positive response from the Board at
its meeting in June 2018. The full report is available online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/
cycling-walking. The Board wanted to the relevant council officers to look at the recommendations in more detail before considering actions, and it was requested that I meet with the
Officers to discuss things further.
I heard nothing about this meeting before the Board Meeting on 27th November 2018, so raised
it there. The Board Chair, Cllr Sam Chapman-Allen said he would chase things up. I requested
an update for this report, but none was forthcoming.
On a more positive note, another improvement proposed in the report may now be going ahead,
at least in part. As discussed at both the Sub-Group and Board meetings in November 2018,
Norfolk County Council is planning to use around £300k of funding left over from the TEP
Roundabout project to upgrade a section of the pavement on the west side of Croxton Road
(between the Academy and the Army Cadet Centre) to a shared-use cycleway.

2

7

Agenda Item 4

Item 5: SUE, TEP and
Waterspace Updates
GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 16th January 2019

1

SUE Phase 1A Progress

Construction work started in October 2018 on the first new houses on the Sustainable Urban
Expansion (SUE) — also known as Kingsfleet. Phase 1A is being built by Hopkins Homes, on
land inside the A11 between the A1075 Norwich Road and the Railway. Further information
about the first phase of the development can be found at https://bit.ly/2RKMcfX .

2

Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary Change)

At the request of Thetford Town Council, Breckland District Council recently ran a ‘Community
Governance Review’ to consider changing the boundary of the Parish of Thetford so that it
incorporates the whole of the new development to the north of the town.
Three stages of public consultation have now been completed, and Breckland Full Council made
its final decision at a meeting on 6th December 2018. The decision partially accepts the Town
Council’s request, and broadly follows the recommendation of the Community Governance SubCommittee, with the exception of changing the name of new Thetford parish ward.

Current parish boundaries shown with solid dark grey lines; Kingsfleet housing development
area shown shaded in pink; agreed new boundary for Thetford Parish shown with a blue dashed
line; potential future boundary extension shown with a red dotted line.

Breckland Council has decided to move the boundary between Thetford and Croxton Parishes
to the A11, but not move the boundary between Thetford and Kilverstone Parishes (see map
above). This means that the land on which most of the new houses in the first three phases of
1

8

the Kingsfleet Development will be built will now become part of Thetford Parish. The land for
the later phases of the SUE (not expected to start until around 2034) will remain in Kilverstone
Parish for the time being, but that decision can be re-visited in the future. A new parish ward
called ‘Iceni’ will be created for the new land in Thetford Parish inside the A11, which will elect
two additional Councillors to Thetford Town Council.
The boundary changes cannot occur immediately, as consent is required from the Local Government Boundary Commission for England. It is unlikely that this will be obtained in time to
move the boundary for the May 2019 Council elections.
Further background information and details of the earlier consultation rounds can be found
online at https://bit.ly/2RQXBqK.

3

TEP Roundabout

Construction work is essentially complete on the new roundabout on the A1066 Mundford Road,
which will provide access to the Thetford Enterprise Park (TEP) site (the land between the A11,
and Brunel Way).
The total project cost is roughly £1.5M. Funds allocated to the project include £1.8M from the
Local Enterprise Partnership (which was originally intended for sustainable transport projects
in Thetford) and £450k allocated by Norfolk County Council from their ‘Pooled Business Rates’.
The Board had previously been told that any LEP funding not required for the roundabout
would be returned for use on sustainable transport projects in or around Thetford, such as
those recommended by the Sub-Group’s Cycling and Walking report (http://www.gtdp.org.
uk/cycling-walking). To maximise the funding available for such projects, Breckland could
have chosen to use a significant proportion of the £450k ‘Pooled Business Rates’ money on the
roundabout (up to 22.5% of total project cost). However, they have instead decided to return
this money to Norfolk County Council, leaving only £300k of the LEP money available.
The £300k available is currently earmarked for upgrading the pavement along part of Croxton
Road to a shared-use cycleway.

4

River Thet Re-Routing

Erosion of the river bank at Ford Meadow during Summer 2018 has resulted in the main flow
of the River Thet being diverted from its historic course under the Coffee Mill. The main flow
now follows what was a smaller drainage channel. This passes under the middle bridge of Nuns’
Bridges, before joining the Little Ouse just below the Thetford Pulp Mill Sluice. The old course
between Ford Meadow and the Tricorn bridge by the Riverside development now has a lower
water level, and is almost stagnant with very little flow.
The Environment Agency is currently considering its preferred solution to the problem, and a
report is expected to be published soon. The Town Council (as the responsible land owner) will
take the options to the Amenities, Land and Property Committee for discussion and decision.
Potential costs and funding sources are unclear at present.
For further details see https://bit.ly/2MWtJX8.

2

9

